
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA & Notice of Work Session, 
 & Regular Meeting of Newport City Council (CC) 

Including Acting in the Capacity as the 
Local Contract Review Board (LCRB) 

And Urban Renewal Agency (URA) 
 

The City Council of the City of Newport, also acting in the capacity as the LCRB and 
URA, will hold a work session at 12:00 noon, on Monday, February 1, 2010 in 
Conference Room “A” at City Hall. The regular Council meeting begins at 6:00 P.M., 
on Monday, February 1, 2010. The meeting will be held in the Council Chamber, 169 
S.W. Coast Highway, Newport, Oregon 97365. A copy of the meeting agenda follows. 
 
The work session and meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A 
request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for 
persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to 
Peggy Hawker, City Recorder (541)574-0613. 
 
The City Council, also acting in the capacity as the LCRB and URA, reserves the right 
to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, and discuss any other 
business deemed necessary at the time of the work session and/or meeting. Action 
Items that do not require a public hearing may be moved up earlier in the meeting. 

 
WORK SESSION AGENDA 

12:00 Noon 
CC – LCRB – URA  

 
I. Questions regarding evening agenda items 
II. Interview potential Budget Committee applicants …………pgs. 1-5 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
6:00 P.M. 

CC – LCRB -- URA 
 
Any person wishing to speak on any agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and 
hand it to the City Recorder, Peggy Hawker.  Public Comment Forms are located on a table at 
the entrance door to the City Council Chamber.  If you wish to comment on a subject not on the 
agenda, the Mayor will call on you under “Public Comments”.  If you wish to comment on a 
specific agenda item, the Mayor will call on you when the City Council gets to that item. 
 
I. Call to Order and Roll Call 



 
II. Public Comments 
 This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s 
 attention any item not otherwise listed on the Agenda. Comments will be  
 limited to three (3) minutes per person, with a maximum of 15 minutes for all  
 items.. Speakers may not yield their time to others. 
 
III. Proclamations & Recognitions 
  
 A. Introduce new Airport Director, Gene Cossey 
  (Voetberg) 
 
IV. Consent Calendar 

The consent calendar is an area of the meeting agenda where items of a repeating or 
routine nature can be considered under a single action. Any person who desires to have 
an item on the consent agenda removed and considered separately could make it so by 
merely asking. 
 
A. Approval of minutes from the work session, 

executive session, and regular meeting of  
January 19, 2010, ………………………………………pgs. 1-12 
(Atkinson) 

 
V. Council Members’ Reports and Comments 
 
VI. Officers’ Reports  

A. Mayor’s Report 
 1. Committee appointments………………………pgs. 1-4 
 2. Cascades West Area on Transportation- 
  Nominate Members…………………………….pgs. 1-2 
B. City Manager’s Report 

  1. Manager’s Written Report………………..……pgs. 1-17 
 C. City Attorney’s Report 
 
VII. Discussion Items and Presentations 
 Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations, discussion of 

potential future action items 
 
 A. Power point presentation by youth group  

Representing Oregon Coast Aquarium & 
Newport Chapter of Surfrider Foundation 
 on their Winter Projects Team………………………pgs. 1-5 

 
B. Presentation on Sustainability by Susan 

  Millhauser from City of Lake Oswego………………..pgs. 1-2 
  (Brusselback/McCarthy) 
 
 



C. Presentation on Sustainability by Mark Saelens 
from Lincoln County………………………………….pgs. 1-5 

  (Brusselback/McCarthy) 
 
VIII. Public Hearings 
 
IX. Action Items  

Citizens will be provided the opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has 
given their report and if there is an applicant, after they have had the opportunity to 
speak.  (Action items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances)  

 
 A. Updates to Chapter 11.05 of the Municipal Code 
  and Ordinance regarding imposition of fines 

for building code violations……………………..….pgs. 1-8 
(Tokos/McCarthy) 

 
B. Resolution No. 3490, adding annual household 

pass to pool fee schedule……………………..….…pgs. 1-9 
  (Protiva/Voetberg/McCarthy) 
 
X. Public Comment 

(Additional time for public comment – 5 minutes per speaker) 
  

XI. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 



1



2



3



4



5



January 19, 2010 
Noon 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
 

Councilors present: Bain, Bertuleit, Brusselback, Kilbride, Obteshka and Patrick. 
McConnell was excused.  

Staff present: Voetberg, McCarthy, Atkinson, Tokos, Ritzman, Smith, Crook, 
Schultz, Protiva, and Miranda. 

 
Council discussed the following items: 

 
1. Mayor reported he would be adding an agenda item to the consent calendar – an 

OLCC license application for the Champagne Patio Restaurant.   
2. Patrick asked about the status of the Grady Britton contract.  She was informed it 

ends on June 30, 2010, and the Destination Newport Committee is aware of this and 
working on it. They will make a recommendation to Council on this matter. 

3. Obteshka inquired about the payment to RDO Trust on page 10 of the claims.  
4. Patrick inquired about the current budget committee opening.  Mayor reported two 

applications have been received, and they will come before the Council to answer 
questions at the Council’s February 1st noon work session. He further noted we have 
not received any applications for the Bike and Pedestrian Advisory Committee.  It 
was determined applications will continue to be received for committee openings 
until filled.   

5. Bertuleit will report this evening on the recent Airport Advisory Committee meeting 
of last week, and the Bike & Pedestrian Advisory Committee meeting he attended, as 
well as the Fisher Poets event he attended over the weekend. 

6. Patrick will report on Port activities this evening.  
7. Brusselback will report this evening on the Blue Ribbon Task Force, and a League of 

Oregon Cities class (Strategic Planning) that he recently attended. 
8. Kilbride indicated he would have comments this evening with regards to room taxes 

collected, and the current air service information he had received this morning. 
9. Obteshka will report on the OCZMA quarterly meeting he attended last week 
10. Voetberg reported he had received a call from the “News-Times” editor asking about 

placing “Shop Local” signs below the Newport entrance signs. The consensus of 
Council was to reserve those locations for community events.  

11. Obteshka requested the City look at what other communities are doing with regards to 
using non-toxic chemicals for weed control and fertilization.  He suggested asking 
specifically what Lincoln City does. Brusselback requested Council be informed on 
what staff finds out in their research on this matter. 

12. Brusselback said he would like to share a hand-out he received at the LOC session on 
goal setting, since the Council will be holding their goal setting session soon.    

1



13. The date of February 22nd was discussed for scheduling the Council’s goal setting 
session. Council indicated they would like to schedule only one day for the session.  
Voetberg explained he would suggest Feb. 22nd as Councilor McConnell should be 
back from his vacation by that date.  He asked Council to confirm with Atkinson later 
in the week if this date will work for all. 

14. Schultz gave an update on the Airport’s response to an FAA investigation following a 
plane crash that occurred Sunday after the plane’s departure from the Newport 
Airport.  FAA complimented our staff on the excellent job they did.  They gave the 
okay to begin selling fuel again at the self-serve site.  The self-serve gasoline was 
unavailable approximately 24 hours because of the accident.   

15. Bertuleit asked where we were with Georgia Pacific, and McCarthy responded the 
ball is in their court, and has been since December 23rd. 

16. Ritzman briefly explained the public hearing being held this evening. He reported it is 
to obtain a loan/grant from the USDA Rural Development to be used for 
improvements to the City’s wastewater/collections system. 

17. Tokos distributed a letter received from Attorney Dennis Bartoldus with regards to 
the request for a Council initiated street vacation for a portion of SW 12th Street and 
S.W. Case Street. Tokos shared the policy Council had established in October 2008 
with regards to requests for Council initiated street vacations.  He noted the only 
portion of the Council policy not met by the applicant was the demonstration of a 
good faith effort to obtain written consent from neighboring property owners. 

18. Tokos explained the process for legalizing SW Harbor Drive, and how this particular 
street relates to the requested street vacation of SW 12th.   

19. McCarthy reported on the proposed amendment to the taxi cab ordinance that Council 
had directed her to prepare at their January 4th meeting.  Further language changes 
were suggested in Section 1 of the ordinance.  Adding verbiage in Section 1, line two, 
“or any form of consideration” was one suggestion.  McCarthy stated she would be 
also be adding that the drivers must be 21 years of age.  The $1,000,000 insurance 
coverage required, and the need to have that lowered was discussed.  McCarthy said 
she would contact our insurance agent, Mark Collson, as he was the one who 
provided that figure.  

20. The most recent “draft” Airport Business Plan was distributed and discussed. 
Voetberg indicted the Council would not need to take action this evening, as the draft 
plan should have been placed under the presentation section of the agenda, rather than 
action.   

21. Kilbride said he had received an e-mail from Sheldon Hunt, who had concerns with 
the draft plan, and had asked his name be removed from the plan.  Kilbride indicated 
he might agree with some of Mr. Hunt’s concerns.  Brusselback indicated he had 
some concerns with the plan also.  

22. Bertuleit explained this was definitely a draft Airport Business Plan, and Council 
could make further changes to the plan if they so wished.   

23. Voetberg stated the Parks & Recreation Business Plan was ready for adoption this 
evening, and staff had made the adjustments as requested at the last Council meeting.  
The family pool pass as suggested by Bertuleit was discussed. Kilbride indicated that 
page 26 needed to have the same information at the bottom of the page as page 27.  
Protiva agreed, and stated he would have a corrected page 26 for the evening meeting.  

2



24. Brusselback noted there was no substantial changes made to the marketing plan, and 
that had been requested by both he and Councilor McConnell.  He wants to see that 
occur. 

25. Obteshka inquired if fill from the Bay Front project could be used for the NOAA 
project, as the Port had inquired.  Ritzman said he would not advise doing this swap, 
as the Bay Front soils have to be treated. Ritzman indicated there would be fill 
available in a couple of months when the Water Treatment Plant project begins, and 
he will contact Don Mann. 

26. Discussed the pharmaceutical return program being presented this evening. 
27. Brusselback reminded Council of the two sustainability presentations for their 

February 1st meeting.  It was suggested staff invite the Port to attend to hear these 
presentations. 

28. It was determined to postpone the executive session scheduled for January 25th 
because three councilors will not be able to attend.  The Urban Renewal meeting will 
still be held on January 25th. 

29. Ritzman gave an update on the Nye Beach storm drainage system, and progress 
made. Voetberg reported that all departments are working together to prevent further 
flooding in the city. 

30. Voetberg reported the monthly financials would continue to be sent out as last week.  
Kilbride asked for a report comparing property taxes received over the last three 
years. 

31. MOTION was made by Patrick, seconded by Bertuleit, to enter executive session 
pursuant to 192.660(2.(h.) to consult with legal counsel. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote, and Council entered executive session at 2:00 P.M. 

32. MOTION was made by Kilbride, seconded by Bertuleit, to leave executive session. 
The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote, and Council returned to its work 
session at 2:33 P.M. 

 
Having no further business, the work session adjourned at 2:35 P.M. 

 
 

3



January 19, 2010 
(TUESDAY) 

6:00 P.M. 
Newport, Oregon 

 
 The City Council of the City of Newport met on the above date in the Council 
Chambers of the Newport City Hall. On roll call, Bain, Bertuleit, Brusselback, Kilbride, 
Obteshka, and Patrick were present. McConnell was excused. 
 Staff present was City Manager Voetberg, City Attorney McCarthy, Community 
Development Director Tokos, Public Works Director Ritzman, Interim Finance 
Director Schultz, Parks and Recreation Director Protiva, Police Chief Miranda, 
Lieutenant Teem, and Executive Assistant Atkinson. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 The consent calendar consisted of the following items: 
 

(A)  Approval of minutes from work session and regular meeting of January 4,  
       2010          

 (B)  Account of claims paid for December 2009, 
 (C)  Fire & Police monthly reports, December 2009 
 (D)  Ratification of amendment to City Attorney’s contract. 
 (E)  OLCC license approval for Champagne Patio Restaurant and Fine Wine. 
 
 MOTION was made by Brusselback, seconded by Patrick, to approve the 
consent calendar as presented. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

COUNCILOR’S REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
 Obteshka reported on the OCZMA quarterly meeting he had attended last week, 
and shared many of the agenda items from the meeting, i.e. tsunami update, marketing 
campaign for the Southern Oregon Coast, and oil and gas exploration rights that have 
expired.  

Brusselback reported on the League of Oregon City’s Strategic Planning Session 
he attended last Friday, January 15th.  He said it was interesting and he had gleaned 
some useful information from the session. He indicated he would be sharing one of the 
handouts on goal setting with Council members as their goal setting session was soon.   
 Brusselback further reported on the Blue Ribbon Committee.  They are honing 
in on a fair grounds and what all that entails. There will be two public meetings on 
January 26th in Newport, and then again on January 27th in Lincoln City, both 
beginning at 7:00 p.m.  
 Kilbride reported on the most recent numbers provided on the City room tax 
collections.  He stated they are a little higher than this time last year, but based on the 
current year’s budget and collection schedule, we are behind by $75,000.  For the 
previous three years we are behind by $51,000, per Kilbride. He indicated that his 
figures agree with the Interim Finance Director’s current year’s transient room tax 
collection, but they are a little different on the past three years. He said he would meet 
with Mr. Schultz on these numbers. 

4



 Kilbride reported the Seaport airline ridership had decreased this past week, and 
this was the first time our ridership had dropped below Astoria’s. He commented that 
we are using up the subsidy fairly quickly, and we lost approximately $5,000 last week 
with the low ridership. 
 Kilbride reported that he had requested at the noon work session a property tax 
comparison for the past three years, and Schultz had provided the information for the 
evening meeting.  He said if the numbers are accurate, we have collected 89.4% this 
year, which indicates our collections are up over the past two years.   
 Bertuleit reported on the Airport Advisory Committee meeting he had attended 
last week.  They had reviewed information being gathered for fees and leases, and 
indicated these fees would be further reviewed when the new airport manager arrives.  
He also reported the committee had reviewed the draft Airport Business Plan prior to it 
being presented to the Council this evening. 
 Bertuleit reported on the recent Bicycle & Pedestrian Committee meeting he 
attended. The go ahead for new bike signage was given; they are interested in 
purchasing new stainless steel bike racks; they are pleased to see new curb cuts 
occurring in different areas of the city; and are still interested in a better bike route 
along Ocean View Drive.  He reported he had met with Lee Ritzman and they reviewed 
the bike route to try and find where the route could be expanded. 
 Bertuleit reported he had attended the Fisher Poets event over the weekend, and 
it had been well attended. He noted the City had given tourism grant funds towards this 
event. He further reported that Councilor Brusselback had participated in the event by 
reading some of his poetry. 
 Bertuleit reported that work has begun on creating the bike route map. 
 Patrick reported that NOAA has arrived and construction has begun on their 
site. Two local contractors were awarded the job – Road & Driveway and Western 
States Electrical Construction.  She reported that the Port is meeting with NOAA 
personnel every two weeks.   
 Patrick reported she had attended Gene Bateman’s celebration of life on Friday.  
Our sister city of Mombets had sent many condolences to be shared, as Gene was very 
active with our sister city program over the years.  Patrick indicated when Councilor 
McConnell returns from vacation the Council can determine what they would like to do 
with regards to a memorial in Gene’s name. 
 Mayor Bain reported on the annual meeting of the Airline Consortium.  He 
indicated the Port of Portland had rejected the request from Seaport to exclude the 
passenger facility charges (PFC) from their fares. The consortium received a good 
marketing report. The Mayor further reported on survey cards, the progress of e-
ticketing, and inter-line ticketing agreement, and possible schedule changes.  
 A brief discussion ensued on why the Newport passenger count may have 
dropped last week. 

 
OFFICER’S REPORTS 

 
 Report of the City Manager.   Voetberg reported he had included a 6-month 
review in the Council’s packet. He commented many major personnel changes have 
occurred over the past six months, but staff was still able to accomplish many tasks.  He 
praised City employees for helping that to occur.   

5



Voetberg stated he was recommending the $250 donation received recently be 
given to “Meals on Wheels”, and unless Council had any objections that is where the 
city would send the $250 donation.   
 Voetberg requested Lieutenant Teem come forward to speak on the 
“Pharmaceutical Take Back Program” that our Police Department is initiating.  Teem 
and Barb Dougherty, Director of the Lincoln County Commission on Children & 
Families, spoke briefly about the program and explained how it will work. Dougherty 
demonstrated how easy it is to dispose of expired pharmaceuticals through this 
program. Dougherty reported that Newport is the first city in Oregon to offer this 
program, and we should be proud. Teem commented they will be doing a soft rollout at 
the City and County offices with regards to this program, and will be spreading the 
word more heavily to our community in about a month. 
 Patrick asked if this program had been communicated to Hospice, as they 
recommend flushing medications once the patient has passed. Dougherty said they had. 
Teem indicated the Police will also be changing their procedures with regards to 
disposal of pharmaceuticals following a death. 

Bertuleit asked if the Rx container could be placed at Fred Meyer or Wal-Mart. 
Teem explained that it has to be where the Police can monitor it and have surveillance.   

Bain asked if this program would be taken to the schools, and Dougherty said 
yes.  She also indicated they will get the word out to as many places as possible.   

Obteshka stated we should encourage other communities near us to participate.  
Teem noted that Toledo has already checked with Newport about the program.   

The Council took a break and recessed at 6:43 p.m.  They resumed their meeting 
at 7:00 p.m. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
 Public hearing on obtaining a USDA Rural Development Loan/Grant to be 
used for Improvements to the City’s Wastewater Collection System.  Bain opened 
the public hearing at 7:00 p.m.  He called for abstentions and declarations of ex parte 
contact. He asked whether there were objections to any of the Councilors, or the 
Council as a whole, hearing this matter. There were none. Ritzman explained the USDA 
Rural Development Loan/Grant and how it will benefit the City’s wastewater collection 
system. He stated the city has a series of pump stations that need to be increased, as well 
as new force mains. USDA Rural Development requires a public hearing on the 
application process. He further explained because of the income of our general 
population, the loan/grant may not have to be paid back. He indicated we will not need 
to sign the agreement, until we know all the details.   
 Brusselback asked if these “fixes” would help to stop the sewer spills. Ritzman 
responded that it should. 
 Kilbride asked if the City has to pay back any money on this project, be it a loan 
or grant, where would we take it from in our budget. Ritzman said it would have to 
come out of our sewer rates, and the payback would not begin until after the last project 
is completed.   

Hearing no further comments or questions, Bain closed the public hearing at 
7:04 p.m. 
 MOTION was made by Obteshka, seconded by Bertuleit, that City Council give 
authorization for the Public Works Department staff to continue with the process of 

6



obtaining $5.24 million of USDA Rural Development Funds through a loan/grant 
process, with these funds to be used to upgrade the City’s wastewater collection’s 
system in the Agate Beach area.  The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote.  

Bain reported that he resides in one of the areas being proposed for this project. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

Council initiation of street vacation for S.W. 12th Street & S.W. Case 
Street:  Tokos explained the issue before the Council is whether or not they wish to 
initiate the street vacation process for SW 12th Street and SW Case Street. He described 
the area. He indicated Council had adopted a new policy on Council initiated street 
vacations in October of 2008. He read the seven considerations within the policy.  He 
indicated at this time, the request does not satisfy the Council policy for a City initiated 
right of way vacation, as the owner has not demonstrated a good faith effort to obtain 
written consent from neighboring land owners, nor have they proven the attempts to 
obtain consent would be futile. Tokos stated the property owner’s Attorney, Dennis 
Bartoldus, had provided Council with a letter at their noon work session responding to 
the staff’s recommendation.  

Tokos explained there could be a trade off on SW Harbor Drive for property the 
City could acquire for a sidewalk from the property owners who are requesting the SW 
12th street vacation. He noted the legalization of SW Harbor Drive was the next item on 
the Council’s agenda.  

Tokos stated this is the first time Council has had the opportunity to apply the 
City initiated street vacation policy, since it was adopted in 2008. He said the question 
before the Council is whether they think the applicant being required to notify 70 
property owners would be futile. Tokos said if the Council thinks this vacation meets 
their policy for being a Council initiated street vacation, and gives approval, he would 
like to see the legalization of Harbor Drive be approved and have it occur first.  Tokos 
stated he would also recommend the applicant pay the filing fees.  

Councilors discussed the policy and both Brusselback and Obteshka indicated 
the applicant should contact the 70 property owners.  It was noted that the owners of 
2/3rds of the affected property within the notice area would need to respond 
affirmatively for the applicant to attain the street vacation.  The applicant would still 
have to go through all the public hearings and the neighboring property owners would 
have opportunity to speak either for or against the street vacation.  

Kilbride stated he had read Bartoldus letter from the noon work session and 
agreed that contacting a large number of property owners could prove difficult.  

Attorney Dennis Bartoldus and applicant, Mike Ruckus, came forward. 
Bartoldus stated this street vacation request is very much tied in with the legalization of 
Harbor Drive. He does not see this as an ordinary street vacation. Bartoldus commented 
that the City needs a portion of the Rickus property along Harbor Drive to complete the 
legalization of Harbor Drive.  Bartoldus spoke about the topography of S.W. 12th and 
Case Streets, and Harbor Drive. He addressed the property owner notification, and how 
difficult that could be with this type of street vacation, and the numbers of property 
owners involved.  He indicated from past experiences that attaining signatures from 
many property owners is very difficult, and can drag on for a very long time. He stated 
it is a heavy burden placed on the applicant. Neighboring property owners will be 
contacted, and will have the opportunity to speak at more than one public hearing. He 

7



stated Council would not be setting a bad precedent. He also commented that paying 
the filing fees had never been an issue.  

The applicant, Mike Rickus, reported he had purchased his property in 
September of 2009 with the intent to build townhouses. He had contracted with a 
geologist and a surveyor for the property, and through that process discovered Harbor 
Drive had never been legally accepted by the City. He had contacted the City early on 
about the problem with Harbor Drive, and expressed his willingness to work with the 
City, since a portion of his property will be needed when legalizing Harbor Drive. 
Rickus shared a power point depicting his property and the surrounding area.   

Bartoldus said it would be a substantial benefit for the City to clear up the 
problem with Harbor Drive.   

Brusselback stated it would definitely be more expeditious for the applicant if the 
City initiated the street vacation. 

Bertuleit inquired which tax lots the City owned. 
Kilbride explained if the City does initiate the vacation, there will still be pubic 

hearings, and it would follow the same process of going before Planning Commission 
before coming to the Council. He commended Mr. Rickus for obtaining the needed 
information before proceeding with his project. 

Obteshka asked if the property was zoned correctly for townhouses. Tokos 
stated the property was zoned R-3 or R-4, which is the correct zoning. 

Bain inquired if the alleyway will be retained for access. The answer was yes.    
Brusselback stated one burden on persons seeking to vacate property is that they 

must notify the owners of neighboring properties.  Brusselback said he did not want to 
see this democratic process sidestepped when Council initiates the street vacation 
process.   

Tokos stated that if the owners of 2/3rds of the property within the notification 
area agree to the vacation through the applicant initiated process, you know it is a go.  
However, they get the same hearing notice at their homes with either an applicant 
initiated or Council initiated process.   

Obteshka commented there are no utilities in 12th street, but there is a water 
line.  He also asked if there would be space left for a 5 foot sidewalk, and Rickus 
responded there would be.  

Kilbride stated if you look at the basic policy with regards to Council initiated 
street vacations, one factor may outweigh all others. Kilbride indicated the public 
benefit outweighed the other factors, and further commented how the applicant had met 
most all other factors in the policy.   
 MOTION was made by Kilbride, seconded by Patrick to initiate the request to 
vacate portions of SW 12th Street and SW Case Street with the property owner paying 
the application fee.  

Bertuleit said he appreciated the applicant doing his homework before bringing 
it before the Council. Obteshka indicated he would be voting against the Council 
initiated street vacation as he wants the property owners notified by the applicant.  
Brusselback said he was fine with Council initiating the vacation, as he had been assured 
the democratic process would still occur.  The motion carried in a voice vote, with 
Obteshka voting nay.  
  
 Initiation of a Process to Legalize S.W. Harbor Drive:  Tokos indicated this 
topic was discussed during the Council initiated request for a street vacation of SW 12th.  

8



He further explained how the City had received a request from Julia and Mike Rickus to 
vacate a portion of the undeveloped SW 12th Street right-of-way, where the right-of-
way intersects with SW Harbor Drive.  When the Rickus’ were doing research for this 
request, they discovered the right-of-way for SW Harbor Drive was never dedicated.  
Tokos indicated the Rickus’ would like to work with the City to resolve the location of 
SW Harbor Drive, as it pertains to their property. In the meantime, State law provides a 
process for legalizing roads.  If the City proceeds with this process, it will help to 
resolve the location of SW Harbor Drive along its entire alignment rather than just 
where it is adjacent to the Rickus property. Tokos listed the compelling reasons the 
City would want to have Harbor Drive become legal. 
 Tokos stated if the City does decide to go forward with road legalization, the 
City would: (1) survey the property, (2) prepare a report, and (3) provide notice of a 
public hearing to abutting property owners. He also reported the County Surveyor 
would provide a free survey as long as the process goes forward and Harbor Drive 
becomes a legalized street.   
 The standard size for a public right of way was discussed. Ritzman said it varies, 
but is usually 50 to 60 feet.  Public Works has looked at this property and they have no 
concerns with the legalization of Harbor Drive.  Ritzman further reported the right of 
way for Harbor Drive will be 50 feet.   

MOTION was made by Patrick, seconded by Kilbride to direct staff to initiate 
the statutory process to legalize SW Harbor Drive.  On call for vote, all members 
present voted aye, motion carried.   
 
 An Ordinance Amending Newport Municipal Code, Chapter 4.15 
Governing Taxicabs.  Attorney McCarthy explained this amendment is being 
proposed to address the issue of persons who solicit riders attending the Seafood & 
Wine Festival, and other related partygoers for donations or tips. She mentioned 
Council had given her direction from their last meeting to bring an amendment to the 
taxicab ordinance back for consideration to address prohibiting the solicitation of riders 
for tips. Subsequently she was contacted by a local night club owner who was very 
concerned about prohibiting the solicitation of riders – from a public safety and liability 
perspective.  McCarthy explained that she and Chief Miranda met with the Chamber 
and a representative of the Seafood and Wine Festival and came up with the idea of a 
temporarily permitting process to address this issue. McCarthy said that the Council 
could adopt the entire amendment to the taxicab code to address both issues or just 
Section 1 or Section 2.  McCarthy said she is recommending Council adopt the 
amendment of the Newport Municipal Code, Chapter 4.15 to address this issue. She also 
noted the verbiage changes recommended from the noon work session had been 
incorporated into the ordinance. McCarthy said she spoke with Mark Collson, the City’s 
Insurance Agent of Record, regarding the $1,000,000 coverage, and he was comfortable 
lowering it to $500,000.  
 Obteshka stated he did not want to discourage designated drivers, especially 
during this event. Mayor Bain commented that the paramount concern is the safety of 
the citizens and the liability for the City.   
 Patrick asked if the temporary permit is good only for the Seafood & Wine 
Festival, and McCarthy responded it was.  
 Marie McQuaw read a statement with regards to the proposed ordinance.  She 
stated she had been hired by Apollo’s Restaurant to provide customers with a safe ride 

9



home after they leave the restaurant, and in her opinion this tactic works to keep people 
safe. They use the local taxi cab, when it is available. She thanked the City for dealing 
with this issue. The only deterrent she could see was the requirement that drivers 
having to be 21 years or older.  
 MOTION was made by Brusselback, seconded by Patricia to adopt Ordinance 
No. 1997 -- an Ordinance amending Newport Municipal Code, Chapter 4.15 Governing 
Taxicabs. Voting aye on the adoption of Ordinance No.1997 was Brusselback, Bain, 
Bertuleit, Kilbride, and Patrick. Obteshka voted nay. Ordinance No. 1997 was duly 
adopted. 
 
 Presentation of the Airport Business Plan by the Airport Committee.  
Voetberg explained the Airport Business Plan had been deferred to this meeting, but no 
action will be required this evening. Voetberg explained the plan had been developed by 
an airport working group over the past couple of months for presentation to the Airport 
Advisory Committee. The advisory committee had received a draft copy of the business 
plan at their January 12, 2010, meeting.  The committee had suggested a few changes 
and those had been incorporated into the plan.   
 Mark Watkins and Richard Larson, Airport Advisory Committee members, 
came forward to speak. Watkins reviewed highlights of the plan. He stated it is a good 
idea to have a business plan in place to help the Airport run more efficiently and to be 
more fiscally responsible.   
 Watkins indicated that page 2 lists specific goals for the Airport.  Watkins stated 
he has lived in Newport since 1981 and in his opinion it has never been marketed 
properly.  It is a beautiful facility, and we need to work with the Chamber of Commerce 
and all other agencies that can assist in helping to market the Airport.   
 Watkins reported that he and Larson had worked on the fuel marketing plan. It 
was not their plan to necessarily make money, but to at least keep the doors open and 
the airport operating.  He indicated the plan before the Council is not the final copy and 
it is open for editing. 
 Kilbride thanked the group for all the time they had put in pulling this plan 
together. He further commented that he had received an e-mail from Sheldon Hunt.  He 
stated that Mr. Hunt had gone through the plan and had indicated some of the areas are 
misleading.  Watkins stated he had not received a copy of Mr. Hunt’s e-mail. Kilbride 
said Hunt raises several issues in his e-mail that concern him.  Watkins said Mr. Hunt 
had more than a week to respond to the plan prior to it coming to the Council.  He said 
he would like to look at this e-mail and respond to it. Kilbride said Mr. Hunt was 
concerned enough with the accuracy of the plan, that he requested his name be removed 
from the document.  Watkins said he would like to respond to his concerns.   
 Obteshka asked if we could have a third party review the plan once we have a 
final draft. 
 Watkins stated that City Manager Voetberg had provided the city’s budget 
figures with regards to the airport. 

Brusselback asked what is the time crunch, and how long will it take for input.  
Watkins stated he thought the time was this evening.   
 Bain stated in all likelihood the new airport director that comes on board 
February 1st will want to be involved with the business plan. Watkins concurred. Bain 
asked how a major golf course, which has not been built as yet, could provide revenue to 

10



the Airport.  Watkins said if and when the golf course was built, it would be on Airport 
property and it would be a land lease. It is something that could happen.   
 Brusselback asked how speculative do you want to be in a business plan. 
Watkins said the idea of the golf course could be moved and included as an additional 
potential resource. Discussion of when the draft business plan should come back before 
Council was discussed.  Patrick stated she would like to have it before the Council’s goal 
setting session. 
 Watkins said if Council has any input or questions to please contact him as soon 
as possible. It was noted that City staff will provide the contact information for Gene 
Cossey to Mr. Watkins.  
 MOTION was made by Bertuleit to pay Mr. Cossey an hourly wage to begin 
working on the business plan right away.  Motion died for lack of second.  
 Patrick thanked Watkins for all the work done to date on the plan, and reminded 
him that this is a working document. Watkins thanked city staff for instituting some of 
the new ideas that the group came up with, as it has helped. 
 
 Consideration of the Parks & Recreation Business Plan.  Voetberg stated the 
proposed Parks & Recreation Plan is back before the Council for adoption. He reminded 
Council they had adopted a resolution setting the fees for Parks & Recreation at an 
earlier meeting, and adopting the business plan was a separate issue. He indicated that 
he and staff have attempted to meet the Council’s objectives as laid out at the Council’s 
December 19th meeting. He explained that staff levels have been reduced; revenue has 
been adjusted to reflect the projected increase in user fees collected, and that the hours 
of operation at the Parks & Recreation facilities have not been adjusted.  
 Obteshka stated it was a great improvement over what they had received earlier.  
He indicated he would still like staff to institute an electronic card check-in system to 
save on staffing levels.  Obteshka said it would be good to try and have some Parks & 
Recreation events be shown on Channel 4.   
 Bertuleit indicated we need a better marketing plan for the center, and the 
sooner the better.  He said if you don’t promote your business, it does not promote itself.  
He further stated if we need to budget more for marketing to let him know. 
 Bertuleit requested the 30% savings to families for the swimming pool be 
included in the business plan.  He said you could include it in the plan, and then add it to 
the resolution. Another suggestion was to indicate it is a goal in the pool section of the 
plan.   

MOTION was made by Bertuleit, seconded by Patrick, directing staff to bring 
back a resolution including the 30% discount for families for our swimming pool.  The 
motion carried in a voice vote, with Bain voting nay. 
 Brusselback stated most troubling to him in the Business Plan was the lack of a 
good marketing plan.  He could not see that any substantial changes had been made, 
and   marketing is the key element to this whole process. It was his opinion that 
marketing had not been addressed.   

Protiva responded his staff has met, and are coming up with new and inventive 
ideas, using electronic, newspaper, and all forms of media.  He said they are looking at 
new ways to access new markets. Brusselback requested that this marketing information 
be included in the plan.   
 Patrick said she also had concerns about marketing in the plan, and that 
Councilor McConnell had also expressed his concerns.     

11



 Bain suggested approving the plan this evening, but to request that the 
marketing information be updated.  Bain asked if more personnel would need to be cut 
in the Parks & Recreation Department. Protiva stated at this date, no, but if the 
revenues do not come in, we will have to cut more personnel.   
 Bertuleit suggested cutting hours at the Recreation Center by opening an hour 
later and closing an hour earlier.  Protiva responded that would change the service level 
for our patrons, and it was his understanding the Council did not want that to occur.   
 Kilbride asked if the Recreation Center would be within budget at the end of the 
fiscal year, and Protiva said it would. Kilbride stated if it looks otherwise near the end of 
the fiscal year that more action will need to be taken to bring it within budget totals. 
 MOTION was made by Brusselback, second by Bertuleit to direct staff to 
analyze the existing marketing plan within the business plan and rewrite it to the 
satisfaction of Council.  Under discussion once the revised marketing plan is accepted by 
Council it will be added to the adopted business plan.  The motion carried in a voice 
vote, with Bain voting nay. 
 MOTION was made by Brusselback, seconded by Obteshka to adopt the 2010 
Parks & Recreation Plan.  On cal for vote, all members present voted, motion carried. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 Walter Sherman, representing “The Depoe Bay Beacon” stated that he had 
turned in a public records request last Thursday to our City Recorder. He understood 
she was going to be out of the office for a couple of weeks.  Sherman indicated the 
request had asked for any e-mails and/or written correspondence between Council 
members, the Mayor and or staff relating to performance reviews for the City Attorney 
and City Manager.  Sherman asked where the completed forms were.  Bain said he has 
not received any. 

Sherman then spoke on the ratification to delay the evaluation of the City 
Attorney.  He asked if it would be delayed and to when.  He also asked when the Council 
met to delay the contract evaluation of the City Attorney.  Bain responded that issue 
was dealt with in the consent calendar at tonight’s meeting. McCarthy indicated the 
ratification of the change in her contract was needed, or the City would have been in 
breach of her contract.   
 Sherman asked the entire Council where the completed evaluation forms were.  
Bain once again indicated none had been returned to him.  Brusselback stated the 
documents do not exist.  Obteshka said he had done nothing on the forms. Larry 
Coonrod, from the “News-Times” spoke up and stated that a couple of Councilors had 
those forms at their last meeting, and said they were filling them out. Sherman asked if 
anyone had finished those forms.  Patrick said she had completed hers, and Obteshka 
said he had not completed his.   
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Hearing no further public comment, and having no further business, the meeting 
adjourned at approximately 9:29 P.M. 
 
_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Cheryl Atkinson, Executive Assistant William D. Bain, Mayor 

12



1



2



3



4



1



2



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



1



2



3



4



5



6



What is a Sustainable Community?
A sustainable Lake Oswego is a community that meets the vital human needs of the present without 
compromising our ability to meet future needs. This requires consideration of both long-term and 
short-term effects on ecological, economic, and community systems. Operating sustainably means 
that we are leaving a legacy for the community of Lake Oswego 
and the planet. 

A sustainable Lake Oswego is a place recognized nationally as a 
model of livability—a unifi ed city with a vital downtown, a strong 
sense of neighborhoods, and a harmonious relationship with the 
natural environment. The lives of everyone who lives, works, and 
conducts business in Lake Oswego are enriched by a wide range of 
choices in transportation, housing, recreation, and culture. Our 
infrastructure is sound, our fi nances are stable, and our citizens 
and employees healthy and engaged.

Sustainability is a journey rather than a destination, and requires systems-based decision-making 
for understanding economic, ecological, and community impacts as a whole. 

Why in Lake Oswego?
Sustainability requires that local governments ensure municipal services can be sustained and 
equitably distributed today and for future generations. Achieving this objective requires a strategic 
approach that equally factors long-term ecological, economic, and social equity concerns into the 
planning, development, and provision of municipal services. The City of Lake Oswego recognizes 
that local government plays a vital role in fostering sustainability and is committed to adopting, 
implementing, and maintaining sustainable practices. The City is part of a worldwide movement 
to create a more sustainable future. Closer to home, the State of Oregon, many Oregon cities 
and counties, business leaders, and non-profi ts are incorporating sustainability into how they do 
business, with the concept gaining widespread support among many sectors. The City Council has 
included sustainability in its adopted goals since 2002. 

Program Approach
The City began its coordinated sustainability efforts by fi rst focusing on City operations. A 
staff sustainability steering committee was established in 2006 to evaluate the current level 
of sustainability in City policies, programs, and practices, and make recommendations. The 
committee’s efforts culminated in the City of Lake Oswego Sustainability Plan, adopted by the 
City Council in November 2007. In 2008, the City Council established a community sustainability 
advisory board to lead the City’s sustainability efforts within the community.

City of Lake Oswego Sustainability

March 2009

Procurement (Purchasing and Contracting) — Many purchasers at the City consider 
sustainability objectives when making purchasing decisions. A goal for 2008 was 
to develop a sustainable purchasing policy to formalize these practices, with the 
development of tools to make the purchase of “green” or sustainable products more 

effi cient. Some tools were evaluated and implemented during 2008, however this project is still a 
work in progress. 

Current City practices include: 
Specifying “green” cleaning products, such as Green Seal certifi ed products, for use by janitors.• 
Leasing and purchasing Energy Star compliant computer equipment and copiers.• 
Using local restaurants and caterers to provide food for City meetings, and requesting family-• 
style service to reduce waste and the need for disposable packaging.
Specifying the use of deconstruction and construction debris recycling and use of diesel emission • 
reduction technology in contracts for building removal from City property.

What’s Next – Community Sustainability Advisory Board 
The City’s Sustainability Advisory Board (SAB) began meeting in the summer of 2008. The mission 
of the SAB is to promote the sustainability of the community as whole, considering public and 
private actions and their effects on ecological, economic, and community systems. The SAB’s 
responsibilities include: 

Advise and assist the City Council in efforts to make City operations more sustainable. • 
Assist in the development of plans and policies to enhance the sustainability of the city as a • 
whole.  
Educate and support other Lake Oswego organizations to become more sustainable.  • 
Educate and engage the public in efforts to make the community of Lake Oswego, including • 
residents, businesses, and institutions, more sustainable.

The SAB’s goals for 2009 include:
Educate and assist the City Council, Boards, and Commissions in sustainability.1. 
Provide strategic oversight for the City Sustainability Plan.2. 
Support sustainability-related initiatives by the City.3. 
Implement community outreach and engagement programs, such as Sustainability Action Month. 4. 

Want to Learn More? The City web site includes a set of sustainability pages with links to City 
programs and projects, SAB meeting materials, and a variety of resources to help us live, work, 
and play in a more sustainable way. Visit the City’s web site at www.ci.oswego.or.us and click on 
Sustainability to learn more. 

For more information on City sustainability 
efforts, contact Susan Millhauser, 
Sustainability Planner, at 503.635.0291 or 
smillhauser@ci.oswego.or.us.

P.O. Box 369
Lake Oswego, OR 97034



Programs and Projects 
Due to the multifaceted nature of sustainability, the City’s sustainability accomplishments are 
woven throughout many City programs and projects. The information included below highlights 
actions that have been taken to realize milestones outlined in the Sustainability Plan, and is not a 
complete description of the City’s sustainability efforts. 

The Sustainability Plan, available on the City web site (go to www.ci.oswego.or.us and click on 
Sustainability), is intended to guide City sustainability efforts by providing a common understanding 

of sustainability and a vision for the future. It is hoped that the 
Sustainability Plan serves as a guide for business decisions to ensure 
wise use of public funds while promoting the conservation and 
effi cient use of energy, water, native habitats, and other natural 
resources, and considering the social and community implications of 
actions. For a better understanding of what actions might be taken 
to move toward a sustainable future, the Sustainability Plan includes 
goals, milestones, and performance measures. These were developed 
with consideration of four sustainability framework objectives based 
on The Natural Step.

Action areas identifi ed in the Sustainability Plan for 2008 include: energy and transportation, water 
conservation, waste reduction and recycling, and procurement (purchasing/contracting). Future 
action areas will focus on employee involvement and education, water management (stormwater 
and sanitary sewer), and pollution prevention/toxics reduction. 

Energy and Transportation — The focus in 2008 was on examining and inventorying the 
City’s greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and fi nding opportunities to minimize energy use 
and reduce the City’s carbon footprint. 

In 2008, the City:
Completed a GHG emissions and criterion air pollutants inventory for City facilities and • 
operations.
Supported increased employee participation in the City’s transit reimbursement and employee • 
vanpool programs as well as the regional Bike Commute and Carefree Commuter Challenges, 
helping to reduce single-occupancy vehicle commute trips to and from City facilities. For the 
City Hall site, employees reduced drive alone auto trips by more than 
10 percent over the previous year’s State Employee Commute Options 
survey, for a 77% auto trip rate.
Conducted an employee commute options survey for employees at all • 
City facilities, providing baseline data for employee commute trips. 
Completed a carsharing feasibility study for downtown.• 
Installed an electric vehicle charging station on the corner of A Ave. and • 
2nd St. The City joined forces with PGE to install the station to help 
develop and test the transportation infrastructure needed to support 
plug-in electric vehicles.

In addition, on-going activities are helping to reduce energy use and GHG emissions from City 
operations, including:

Replacing street signal bulbs with light emitting diode (LEDs), reducing energy consumption by • 
80 to 90 percent and saving approximately $32,000 in electricity costs per year. 
Including seven hybrid electric/gas vehicles in the City fl eet.• 

Using 5% biodiesel (B5) for all City diesel vehicles.• 
Purchasing clean, renewable wind power through PGE equal to half • 
of the City Water Treatment Plant’s annual electricity use, with 
lighting and pump upgrades to increase energy effi ciency.
Making upgrades to the heating and cooling system controls at City • 
Hall to increase the building’s energy effi ciency.
Automating payroll functions, e.g. electronic timecards and online • 
pay stub option, to reduce paper, energy, and associated costs.

Water Conservation — Water conservation measures are critical to meet state mandates 
related to water rights and the best use of water resources for all, including endangered 
and threatened salmon species in the Clackamas River. The City is working to better 
manage water usage, not only for the health of the river system, but to ensure a 

continued supply of high quality water for its citizens. An added benefi t of conserving water is the 
reduction of GHG emissions as a large amount of energy is required to pump, treat, and deliver the 
City’s water. 

The City’s Water Conservation Specialist conducts outreach in the community, offers free water 
audits for homes and businesses, and is working to install water effi cient plumbing fi xtures in City 
facilities. The City has a new tiered water rate structure, effective July 1, 2009, that is intended to 
meet several goals: reward conservation, reduce waste, assure regulatory compliance, and replace 
aging infrastructure. To schedule a presentation or water audit contact Kevin McCaleb, Water 
Conservation Specialist, at 503-675-3747 or kmccaleb@ci.oswego.or.us.

Waste Reduction and Recycling  — While recycling is common-place in City facilities, 
the City works with partners at Clackamas County Recycle at Work, Metro, and Allied 
Waste Services of Lake Oswego, to keep staff and the public informed about waste 
reduction and recycling best practices and opportunities. 

In 2008, the City:
Library media services collected and recycled close to 100 boxes of damaged, not playable, or • 
unable to be used plastic media, such as DVDs, CDs, cassettes, and their cases.
Streamlined the collection and recycling of printer/copier toner cartridges, ink jet cartridges, • 
batteries, and fl uorescent light tubes from City facilities.
Started using 100% post-consumer waste recycled content printer/copier paper for most City • 
documents.
Began participation in Offi ceMax’s reusable tote program for offi ce supplies. The Reusable Tote • 
Program consolidates orders into plastic totes delivered on a weekly basis.
Worked with Allied Waste Services of Lake Oswego to conduct waste audits of 10 City facilities • 
to establish baseline data for tracking waste reduction and recycling efforts.
Participated in several community education and outreach events to promote sustainability, • 
including the Shorenstein Properties Green Fair, a community document shredding and recycling 
day, and a block foam collection and recycling day.
Set up recycling containers in City parks and for special events.• 

In addition, on-going activities are helping to reduce waste, such as:
Prohibiting sale of bottled water at the Farmers’ Market and • 
providing water stations instead.
Collecting vegetative waste for composting from the Farmers’ • 
Market and the Adult Community Center. 



 1

Lincoln County Solid Waste District 
Activities Update Outline 

Newport City Council 
Monday, February 1, 2010 

 
SUSTAINABILTY 

 
Joint Statement for a Sustainable Lincoln County – all cities signed 
 
Lincoln County Sustainability Action Committee 

•  SWD chairs the 15 member committee 
•  Active projects/initiatives 

Composting 
Coordination of video-conferencing  
Education/Awareness 
Lighting Efficiency/Dark Skies – Lincoln County facilities provide leadership 
Local Food Security 
Master Composting Class – encourage OSU Extension 
No-spray school zones 
No-idling school zones 
Renewable Energy 
Transportation 
Water Conservation (new for 2010, partner with Soil & Water Conservation) 
Weatherization 
 

Green Challenges 
√  Accepted challenges from National Association of Counties (NACo) Fall 2008 

Drive Smarter 
Energy Star 

•  earned 2nd place for the entire county 
 

☺ Renewable energy education grant 
−  install operational wind and solar power lab with inverter, battery storage, weather 
station and a computer to capture data (Newport Middle School? – other schools 
take field trips or another location)  

 
EDUCATION and PROMOTION 

 
Event Booth 

•  Home and Garden Show (2) 
•  Earth Day/Earth Week – Oregon Coast Aquarium (2) 
•  World Ocean Day – Oregon Coast Aquarium (1) 
•  Oregon Coast Gardening and Landscape Expo (2) 
•  SeaFest (1) 
•  Nye Beach Calm Bake (1) 
•  Town and County Fair (1) 

1



 2

 
 
 

Newspaper Ads and Articles  
• Backyard Composting 
• Recycled Latex Paint 
• Reduce and Reuse 
• Hazardous Household Waste 
• Green Store (reuseable building materials) 
• Green Business Certification 
• Electric Car 
 

Presentations 
•  Presbyterian Church – lighting efficiency 
•  Green Drinks (2) – lighting efficiency & E-Waste 
•  Siletz Housing Group 
•  CTSI Summer Meeting/Picnic 
•  Leadership Lincoln 
•  Newport Chamber of Commerce 
•  Newport, Lincoln City and Waldport City Councils 

 
Radio Ads and Talk Shows 

•  BOSS/KCUP 
Business of the Day (2) 
Recycled Latex Paint and Backyard Composters 
Nike Reuse-a-Shoe (currently running) 
Reuseable Coffee Mug and Water Bottle give-away (start 2/1) 
Soles4Souls (shoes drive for those in need) currently running 
Special talk show (5) 
 

•  KBCH, KCRF, KNPT, KYTE and U92 
Free For All 
Nike Reuse-a-Shoe (running soon) 
Recycled Latex Paint and Backyard Composters 
Reuseable Coffee Mug and Water Bottle give-away (currently running) 
Soles4Souls - shoes drive for those in need (currently running) 
Special Collection Events 

 
Schools  

•  Νatonal Teach-In (2)   
•  Newport Middle School (3 classes – 135 kids) 
•  Toledo Elementary 
•  Taft High School (3) 
•  Waldport High School 
 

☺ continue to expand school presentation capability 
 •  build library of ready-to-go presentations 
 •  voluntary presenter’s bureau 

2



 3

 
RECYCLING 

 
 

•  Coordinate Recycling Activities with County Haulers and SWAC 
•  Portable recycling stations for – 

Newport Storm AAU Basketball Tournament (3) 
Newport Majors Baseball Tournament (1) 
CTSI Summer Staff Meeting/Picnic (2) 
Newport Baseball and Softball Association (2) 
Nye Beach Clam Bake 
Town and County Fair 
Toledo Summerfest 
 

•  Portable recycling stations and training – 
           Siletz Pow-Wow (2) 
           Newport Middle School 
 

•  We now have 25 portable recycling stations available for events 
 

☺ current budget includes program to fund additional recycling stations via, grants, 
donations, sponsorship 

 
 

REDUCE and REUSE 
 

Free-For-All  
 

 √ Have held 4 very successful events, most recent were - 

•   Oct 17 2009 – Lincoln City 

•  Oct 24 2009 – Newport 
 

☺ We are currently planning events for Waldport and Toledo in addition to Newport and 
Lincoln City 

 

Nike Reuse-a-Shoe 
•   worn out athletic shoes are recycled into Nike Grind which is used to create various 
sport surfaces such as tracks and basketball courts 
•   shoe drop off locations              

- Lincoln City Community Center 
- Newport Recreation Center 

 

Reuseable Building Supplies Store  
•   Habitat for Humanity building supplies reuse store in partnership with Samaritan House 
 

☺  applying for a DEQ grant to assist with or build a location (July 2010) 

3



 4

 
 

Soles4Souls 
√   Shoe collection event to provide for those in need.  We will continue to collect shoes 
(because of the recent earthquake in Haiti) until February 15th 

 
Computer Reuse 

?  Install Linux operating system and free software on useable old computers 
•  the idea is to give computers to students that need them  

 
COMPOSTING 

 
Backyard Composting - Earth Machine 

√  we continue to sell this very popular home composter at cost 
√  we focused some extra effort to promote their use – sales more than doubled in 2008 
    140 composters (and accessories) sold compared to the previous average of 55-65 
√  Community Garden and School Composting Projects 
 

Small Scale Commercial Composting and/or Educational or Pilot Project 
☺ Earth Tub at Oregon Coast Aquarium (DEQ grant in process) 
 

RECYCLED LATEX PAINT 
 

Paint Mixing Events and Sales 
√  mixed recycled paint October 2007, August 2008, November 2008 and September 
2009 
•  a total of 85 colors (4,500 gallons) mixed 
•  additional advertising continues to yield increased sales 
•  word-of-mouth reputation continued to increase sales 
• increased price to $30/5-gallon bucket in August 2008 to cover break even costs 
  – paint continues to sell well 
 

HAZARDOUS HOUSEHOLD WASTE (HHW) 
 

Collection Events 
√  Toledo, March 15, 2008 successful event 

•  94 participants, 15,152 lbs 27 mercury thermometers exchanged 
√  Lincoln City, July 25, successful event, 24,000 lbs (including Toledo public works) 
√  events have now been held in Waldport, Newport, Lincoln City and Toledo 
 
☺ The next event is scheduled for Summer, 2010 in Newport 
 

Longer-term Solutions 
☺ HHW Cabinets (grant or accruing fund) 

4



 5

 
 

WOOD AND YARD WASTE 
 

Skelton Road 
√  free wood and yard waste program with Georgia Pacific, State Forestry and the District  
•  open first Fri-Sat combination of every month Mid-September-June 
•  open every Fri-Sat July to Mid-September 
•  25-75 trips per day open depending on month and Fri or Sat 
•   transfer stations now accept wood and yard waste.  We advertise this service with 
Skelton Rd 
 

EMERGENCY DEBRIS MANAGEMENT 
 

√  completed a FEMA approved Debris Management Plan in December 2008.  This plan guides 
all of the activities related to debris management (including hazardous materials) before, during 
and after an emergency.  The plan allows higher and more direct reimbursement from FEMA. 
 

☺ continue development of contracts with county haulers to remove and temporarily 
store storm or emergency event debris. 

 
FOREST ENFORCEMENT 

 
Sheriff Patrol for Dump Sites 

√  Very active – Deputy Gary Davey 
•  Example:  April – June 2009 

Investigation/Reports  59 
Arrests      9 
Site Cleanup   12 
Abandon Vehicles Towed   2 

 
Investigation of Reported Sites 

√  Coordination of complaints/reports between County Health, County Sheriff and   
    Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 
 

☺ continue to expand inter-agency cooperation (State Police, City Police) 
☺ county-wide demolition permits 
☺ improve operation of “forest dump buster” camera system 

 
 

5



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8


	AGENDA-2-1-10
	Budget Committee Applications
	Minutes-Noon Work Session-1-19-10
	Minutes-6 PM Meeting-1-19-10
	Committee Appointments-Applications
	Cascades West Area Comm on Transportation-Nominate Members-2010
	Managers Report-2-1-10
	OC Aquarium-Surfrider Foundation Proposal
	SustainabilityProgram Brochure-3-09-Lake Oswego
	Lincoln County Sustainability Presentation
	Agenda Summary-Municipal Code Update-Fines-Building Code Violations
	Agenda Summry-Resolution 3490-Adds Annual Household Pass to Pool Fee Schedule



